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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PICL (India) Private Limited (‘the
Company’), which comptise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comptehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the yeat then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of out information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’)
in the manner so tequited and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS’) specified under
section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at
31 March 2019, and its loss (financial petformance including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Out tesponsibilitics under those standards are further desctibed in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements scction of out teport. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (TICAT) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Bthics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report theteon

4. 'The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other information
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Our opinton on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appeats to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no othet
information is obtained at the date of this auditot’s repott.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible fot the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial petformance including othet
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of approptiate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that wete opetating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recotds, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is tesponsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, mattets related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company ot to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ot etror, and to issue an auditot’s
repott that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 2
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of usets taken on the basis of these financial statetments.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those tisks, and obtain
audit evidence that s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
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from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misreptesentations,
ot the override of intetnal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosutes made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conchude that a material uncertainty exists, we ate required
to draw attention in out auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinton. Our conclusions ate based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditot’s report. Howevet, futute events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify duting our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to beat on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requitements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to
its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Compantes (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Otder.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we repott that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanadons which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of out audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
o far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

in out opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record
by the Board of Directots, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial conttols ovet financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company as on 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 22 May 2019 as per
Annexure B expressed unmodified opinion; and

with respect to the othet mattets to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

the Company, as detailed in Note 38 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact
of pending litigation(s) on its financial position as at 31 March 2019;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any matetial foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2019,

there were no amounts which wete required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019 and;

the disclosure tequirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes
wete applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are
not relevant to these financial statements. Hence, teporting under this clause is not
applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Charteted Accountants
Fitm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Partner
Membership No.: 504822

ahafan

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2019

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Repott of even date to the members of PICL (India)
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Annexure A

Based on the audit procedures petformed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, and to the best of out knowledge and belief, we report that:

(i) (2) The Company has maintained proper records showing full patticulars, including
quantitative details and sitvation of fixed assets comprising of property, plant and
equipment, investment property, other intangible assets.

(b) The fixed assets comprising of propetty, plant and equipment and capital wotk-in-
progress have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification of the fixed assets comprising of property, plant and
equipment and capital work-in-progress is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (which are included under the head
‘Property, plant and equipment’) are held in the name of the Company.

(i1) In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies between physical
inventory and book records were noticed on physical verification.

(i)  The Company has not granted any loan, secured ot unsecuted to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses
3(itf) (a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

(v)  In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of
the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

(v) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of Company’s
ptoducts and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination
of the cost records with a view to determine whethet they are accurate or complete.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexute A to the Independent Anditor’s Report of even date to the members of PICL (India)
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2019 (cont’d)

(vi)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited to the appropriate authorities, though there has been a slight delay in a few
cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding
at the year-end for a period of mote than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, setvice-tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Statement of Disputed Dues

Name of | Nature of | Amount | Amount | Period to | Forum whete | Remarks, if
the dues R® in | paid which  the | dispute is | any
statizte lakhs) under amount pending
Protest telates
R)
Income | Non/late | 1.61 - AY.2011-12 | Commissioner | Refer Note
tax Act, | filing of AY.2012-13 | of Income Tax | 38 of
1961 tax (Appeals) financial
deducted statements
at soutce

(viiy The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or
financial institution or government during the year. The Company did not have any

outstanding debentures during the year.

(ix)  In our opinion, the Company has applied moneys raised by way of the term loans for the
purposes for which these were raised. The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial
public offer/ further public offer (including debt instruments).

(x) No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the petiod covered by our audit.

(xi)  Managerial remuneration has been paid by the company in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to
the Act.

(xiy  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause
3(xi1) of the Order are not applicable.

(xii) In our opinion all transactions with the related patties ate in compliance with Sections 177

and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
__of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of PICL (India)
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2019 (cont’d)

(xv) In out opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the
directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

(zv1) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

For Walket Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
-

ahajdn
Partner
Membership No.: 504822

Place: Gurugtam
Date: 22 May 2019

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Repott of even date to the members of PICL (India)
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of PICL (India) Private Limited (‘the
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial repotting (IFCoFR’) of the Company as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is tesponsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting ctiteria established by the
Company consideting the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repotting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by
the Institute of Chattered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the ordetly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as requited under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to exptess an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’) and deeted to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note tequite that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assutance about whether adequate IFCoFR were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Out audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an
understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a matetial weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed tisk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditot’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.
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Annexute B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of PICL (India)
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (cont’d)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements fot external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaty to permit prepatation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company ate being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directots of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assutance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Conttols over Financial Repotting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion ot impropet
management overtide of controls, material misstatements due to etror or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the [FCoFR to future periods are subject to the
risk that the IPCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may detetiorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such controls were opetating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the
intetnal control over financial reporting ctitetia established by the Company considering the
essential components of intetnal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) .

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fitm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Sumit-Mahaj
Partner
Membership No.: 504822

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2019

Chartered Accountants




PICL (India) Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019
(All amount in ¥ Jakh unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-curfent assets
Propetty, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Other Intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Financial assets

Loans
Naon-current tax assets {nef)
Other non-current assets
T'otal non-cusrent assets

Current assets
Inventodes
_Financi_al assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Loans
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets

.EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities (net}

Total non-current Liabilities

Cuirent liabilities

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
"Trade payables )
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterpnses

and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Provisions

Current tax liabilities {net)

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Summary of Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

Ror Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm RegistrationJNo. 001076N/N500013)

Y

Sumit M
er
(Membesship No. 504822)

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2019

Notes As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
4 3,866.54 3,480.23
5 86.03 454.97
6 620.39 518.70
7 551.39 506.89
8 29.53 24.03
9 57.92 21.06
10 42.20 20.59
5,254.00 " 5,026.47
11 2,400.73 2,949.07
12 3,539.87 1,822.53
13 . 139.90 1,095.29
14 13.58 99.80
15 21.56 25.54
16 0.74 50.29
17 72839 1,346.83
6,844.77 7,589.35
12,098.77 12,415.82
18 36421 364.21
19 2,006.57 2,168.80
2,370.78 2,533.01
20 541.02 720.53
21 67.33 64.95
22 79.30 151.53
687.65 946.01
23 3,352.17 2,754.36 .
24
5,081.66 4.664.43
25 ' 457.07 902.42
26 40,87 54715
27 4.00 215
28 104.57 66.29
9,040.34 8,936.80
9,727.99 . 9,882.81
12,008.77 12,415.82
3
For and on behalf of Beard of Directors of
(India) Private Limited +

maging Director
(DIN No.: 02023964)

Place: Gurupram
Date: 22 May 2019

Director
(DIN: 00259632}

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2019



PICL (India) Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Ali amount in ¥ lakh unless otherwise stated)

Notes

Income

Revenue from operations : 29
Other income ' 30
Total income l

Expenses .

~ Cost of materials consumed A
Changes in inventoties of finished goods and work-in-progress 32
Excise duty

Employee benefits expense . 33
Finance costs . ‘ 34
Depreciation and amottisation expense 35
Other expenses . 36
Total expenses

Loss before tax

Tax expense
Defetred tax

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit ot loss
Re-measurement (losses)/gains on defined benefit obligations
Tncome tax relating to these items -
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss per equity share
Basic and diluted loss pet share (%) 37

Summary of Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integral pazt of the financial statements.

“This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our repott of even date.
Fot Walker Chandick & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants -
(Firm Registatiqn No. 001076N/N500013)

atj:té::gh
Managing Ditector
(DIN No.: 02023964)

armer
(Membership No. 504822)

Place: Gurugtam
Date: 22 May 2019
Place: Gurugram
Dates 22 May 2019

Tor and on behalf of Board of Directors of
PICE. (India) Private Limited

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
13,700.74 14,747.23
91.40 80.02
13,792.14 " 14,827.25
10,289.48 11,198.95
370.94 (343.20)
- 422,89
566.93 579.62
484,23 564.06
487.40 429.04
1,825.14 2,103.30
14,024,12 14,954.66
(231.98) (127.41)
{71.07) (24.07)
" {160.91) (103.34)
(2.48) - 12.06
1.16 (3.99
(1.32) 8.07
(162.23) {95.27)
(4.42) (2.84)
'
Jasbig ging|
Directo

(DIN: 00259632)

Place: Gurugtam
Date: 22 May 2019




PICL (Inrlia) Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in ¥ lakh unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
A. Cash llows from operating activities '
Loss before tax (231.98) (127.41)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation ’ . 487.40 429.04
Provision for doubtful debt written back - . (8.83)
Interest income ' ©99) 9.71)
Uncealised foreign exchange gain (45.25) (3.60)
Impaicment loss on property, plant and equipment and capital work-in propress - 27.63
Loss by fire : - 37.51
Loss on account of unapproved product development . 5891 -
Bad debt : 18.90 38.32
Other advances written off ' ' 476 117.60
Liabilities written back {23.17) {7.06)
Finance costs 346.06 564.06
Operating profit before working capital changes 606.64 1,057.55
Movements in working capital:
Trade receivables (1,736.24) 688.21
Inventories 548.34 (778.83)
Financial and other assets 665.11 (548.05)
Trade payables 490,55 380.07
Provisions 4.23 (16.12)
Financial and other liabilities (989.91) GBB.65
Cash generated from operations (411.28) 1,471.48
Tncome tax refunded/(paid) (nef) 141 (40.85)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities A {409.87) 1,430.63
B. Cash flows from invésting activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, inta ngibles, {710.58) (1,317.97)
intangible assets under development including capital advances ] ' '
Movement in bank deposits : : 86.22 37.56
Movement in security deposits : (1.52) -
Interest received on bank deposits 8.99 -
Net cash used in from investing activities B (616.89) ' (1,280.41)
C Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from shost-tecm barrowings {net} 584.55 763.85
Proceeds from long term borrowings : B © 12600 849.99
Repayment of long term borrowings : (273.15) (166.95)
Finance costs paid ' : (366.03) (554.43)
Net cash generated from financing aclivities C - T.37 892.46
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C) (955.39) 1,042.68
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 1,095.29 52.61
Cash and cash cquivalent at the end of the year (D+E) {refer note 13} 139.90 1,095.29

(This spacs has been intemtionally loft blawk)




For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Notes to Cash Flow Statement
a. Cash and Cash Equivalents include:
- Asat Asg at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 10.90 1,003.01
- depasits with original maturity less than three months (refer note (ii) below) 128.13 89.21
Cash in hand ' I 0.87 3.07
Cash and bank balances 139.90 1,095.29

The carrying values are a reasonable approximate of their fair values.

b. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 (Ind-AS 7) on

"Statements of Cash Flows" :
¢. Negative figures have been shown in brackets

T'his is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registrationyo. 001076N/N500013}

Sumit Mahaj
Pa;
{Membership No. 504822)

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2019

For and o behalf of Board of Directors of
ICL (India) Private Limited

Managing Director
(DIN No.: 02023964)

(DIN: 00259632)

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2019

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2019



PICL. (India) Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Al amount in ¥ fakh unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2017 304.21
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 ’ 364.21
Changes in equity share capital ducing the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 ’ 364.21
B Other equity
Pasticulars Securities premium General reserve Retained earnings Total

Balance as at 1 April 2017 0.05 54.48 2,209.54 2,264.07
1.oss for the year - - (103.34) (103.34)
Comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - - 8.07 8.07
Balance as at 31 March 2018 0.05 ' 54.48 2,114.27 2,168.80
L.oss for the yeac - (160.91) (160.91)
Comprehensive income for the year {net of tax) - - {1.32) (1.32
Balance ag at 31 March 2019 0.05 54.48 1,952.04 2,006.57

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity refecred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registratign No. 001076N,/N500013)
Ad

Sumit Mahaj
P
{Membership No. 504822)

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2019

" Managing Director
(DIN No.: 02023964)

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2019

TFor and on behalf of Board of Directors of
PICL-ndia) Private Limited

L

{DIN: 00259632)

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2019
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1. Corporate information and statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

PICL ([nd.la) Private Limited (the “Company’) a public limited company domiciled in India and having its registered _
. office at D-151/4, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi-110020, was mcorpotated in September 1994, under the
Companies Act 1956, is engaged in the producton of electtic motots, Thc Company is Currently operating through its
~ factosdes situated at Faridabad in Haryana.

These standalone financial statements {“financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared to comply in all
material respects with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS notified under the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), as amended and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

'The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 wete authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 May 2019. The revisions to the financial statements is petm.ttted by the Boatd of Directots after obtaining
necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies
a. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on acctual and going concetn basis under historical cost convention except
for certain financial instruments and plan assets, which are measured at fair values. The accounting policies are applied
consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements,

“The significant accounting policies and measurement bases have been summarised below.

Curtrent versus non-cusrent classification _ )

All assets and liabilities have been classified as curtent or non-current as per thie Company’s normal operating cycle and as
pet terms of agreements whetever applicable. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classifted as non-cutrent assets and
non-current liabilities, as the case may be.

b. Revenue recognition

Sale of goods
Revenue atises mainly from the sale of goods. To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Company follows a 5-step
process:

() Identifying the contract with a customer

(i} Identifying the performance obligations

(iii} Determining the transaction price

{iv) Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

{(v) Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

. The Company considets the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price.
The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a customet, excluding amounts collected on behalf of thitd parties (for
example, inditect taxes). The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed consideration,
variable consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), or both. Revenue is measured at fair value of consideration
received ot teceivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume tebates,

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Company satisfies performance obligations
by teansferting the promised goods or services to its customers. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the case-of point in time recognition whete consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is
required.

The Company recognises contract liabilities for consideration teceived in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations
and reports these amounts as other liabilities in the statement of financial position. Similarly, if the Company satisfies a
petformance obligation before it receives the consideration, the Company recognises either a contract asset or a
receivable in its statement of financial position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is
tequired before the consideration is due.
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Interest income ,

Interest income is recognized on time propottion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable.
For all financial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) ie.
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net
catrying amount of the financial assets, The future cash flows include all other transaction costs paid or received,
premiums ot discounts if any, etc.

Insurance claims
Insutance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/expected to be admitted and to the extent that the
amount tecoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

¢, Inventoties

Inventories ate valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Costs incurtred in bringing each product to its present
‘location and condition are accounted for as follows: .
® Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in btinging the inventoties to theit
ptesent location and condition. Cost is determined on fitst in, first out basis,
®  Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct matetials and labout and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.
*  Stores and spates, consumables and packing materials cost includes direct expenses and is determined on the
' basis of first in first out method. '

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary coutse of busmess, less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

d. Income taxes

Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) oz directly in equity.

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act,
1961, Currént tax telating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of
ptofit and loss (i.e. in OCI or equity depending upon the treatment of underlying item).

Defetred tax liabilities are generally recognised in full for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
tecognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss, unused tax credits or deductible temporary
difference will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of - future
operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused
tax loss ot credit. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and ate recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferted tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
tealised or the Liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at-the
reporting date. Deferted tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
statement of profit and loss (in OCI or equity depending upon the treatment of underlying item).

e. (Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with otiginal
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amouats of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. :

f. Foteign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (‘INR’ or Rs. ) which is also the functional cutrency of the
Company. .




PICL (India) Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 Match 2019

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional curtency using the exchange tates at the dates of the
transactons. Foreipn exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fotelgn currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to bortowing costs ate presented in the statement of profit and
loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on

‘a net basis within other income/expenses, as the case maybe.

g. Financial instruments
Tuitial recognition and measurerent

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except For those catried at
fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measutement of financial assets and
financial liabilities is desctibed below:

Non-derivative financial assets
Subseguont measurement

i Financial assets cartied at amortised cost — a financial asset is measured at the amortised cost, if both the
following conditions are met: .
® The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and
*  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
intetest rate (EIR) method.

Im}bﬂiﬂmut of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measutement and
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is the weighted-average of difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects
to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the respective tisks of default occurting as the weights.

- When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider: .
e  All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the

assets.
s  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are mtegral to the contractual terms.

Trade receivab]es: In tespectrof trade receivables; the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which
requites measurement of loss allowance ‘at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit
losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument,

Other financial assets: In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial
assets has increased significantly since initial recognition, If the credit tisk has not increased significantly since initial
tecognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else atan
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the tisk of a default occurring over the expected life of
the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset
as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost ot effost, that is indicative of

. significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
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has not increased significantly since initial recogmuon if the financial asset is determined to have low credit sk at the
balance sheet date.

Des-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the contractual righfs to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
ot the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
RY ﬂb.fﬂé‘m’lif weasurensent

Subsequent to initial recogmuon all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amorUSed cost using the effective
interest method.

De-recognition of financial labilities

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lendet on substantially different terms or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de—rccogﬂition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The diffetence in the Icspectlvc catrymg amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Olfsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities ate offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

h. Fair value of financial instruments

In detekmin.ing the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are
based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include
discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result
in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized. For financial assets and. liabilities
matuting within one year from the Balance Sheet date and which ate not catﬁed at fait value, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short mamrity of these instruments.

i. Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

Recognition and initial measarement

Propetty, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if
capitalisation ctiteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs ate included in the
asset’s carrying amount ot recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and definition of asset is met. All other tepair and
maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as mcu.tred

In case an item of property, plant and equipment is acquited on deferred payment basis, interest expenses included in
defetred payment is recognised as interest expense and not included in cost of asset.

Subseguent measurement (depreciation and nsefil lives)
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on stralght line method based on life prescribed as per Schedule II of the
Compamcs Act, 2013,

De-recognition
-An item of property, plant and eqmpment and any significant part initially recogmsed is de- recogmsed upon disposal or
when no futute economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-tecognition of the
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asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrymg amount of the asset) is included in
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

j. Intangible assets

Recoguition, initial measurertent and subsequent meassroment '

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial tecognition, intangible
assets ate cartied at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capltahsed and the related expenditure is reflected in profit
ot loss in the peticd in which the expenditure is incutred.

Reseatch and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenchtures on an md.lvldual pIo]ect are recognised as an
intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

*  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use ot sale

®  TIts intention to complete and its ability and intention to use ot sell the asset

= How the asset will generate future economic benefits

®  The availability of resoutces to complete the asset

. The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial tecognition of the development expenditure as an asset; the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the
asset is available for use. It is amortised over the petiod of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditute forms patt of carrying value of another asset.

Duting the petiod of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.
Apmortisation methods and periods

The Company amottises intangible assets with 2 finite useful life using the straight-line method over the fo]lowmg
periods: :

Useful life (in years) .
Computer softwares 6
Development costs 7

k. Capital wotk-in progress

Cost of matetial consumed and erection charges thereon along with othet ditect cost incurred by the Company for the
ptojects ate shown as capital work-in-progtess until capitalisation.

1. Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that an
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. ‘The
recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For this purpose, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which thete are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets ot group of assets (cash generating units). If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recovetable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its catrying amount; the catrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is tecognised in the
statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date, there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss
o longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a
maximum of depreciated historical cost and the same is accordingly reversed in the statement of proﬁt and loss,

m. Leases

Ar a lessee

Leases in which a s1gmﬁcant pottion of the sisks and rewards of ownershlp are not transferred to the Company as lessee
ate classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease, unless the increase in tent is to compensate the lessor for the effects of inflation.
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n. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisitions, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
duting the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepate the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they ate incutred and teported in finance costs.

A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial petiod of time to get ready for its intended use. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended in the period during which the active development is delayed due to, othet than temporary,
interruption.

o. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are tecognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the cutflow may sl be uncertain. A
present obligation atises when there is a presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has resulted from past
events, for example, legal disputes or onerous contracts. Provisions ate not recognised for future operating losses,

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable
evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation.
Provisions ate discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtally certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation
is recognised as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related provision.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the outflow of economic tesources as a result of present obligations is considered improbable or
remote, no liability is recognised.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
s Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or
= Present obligations arsing from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
tequited to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, related asset is disclosed.
p.. Employee benefits

Expenses and lisbilities in tespect of employee benefits ate recorded in accordance with Indian Accounlmg Standard 19-
Employee Benefits.

Defined benefit plans

Gratwity

The Company opetates one defined benefit plan for its cmployces viz. gtatulty The cost of prowdmg benefits under this
p]an is detétmined on the basis of actuatial valuation at each year—end usmg the projected unit credit method. Actuarial
gam and loss for the defined benefit plan is recogmzed in full in the period in which they occur in other comptehensive
income.

Other long term benefits

Accumulated leave expected to be carded forward beyond twelve months, is treated as long term employee benefit. Such
long term compensated absences ate provided for based on the actvarial valuation using the prolected unit credit method
at the year end. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, is treated as short term
employee benefit.

Liability under continuity linked key resource and deferred salary schemes is provided for on actuarial valuation basis,
which is done as per the projected unit credit method at the end of each financial petiod.
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Defined contribution plans

Provident Fund

The Company makes contribution to statutory prowdent fund in accotdance with Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, The plan is a defined contrbution plan and conttibution paid ot payable is
recognised as an expense in the petiod in which services are rendered by the employee.

Shott-term employeé benefits _
Expense in respect of other short term benefits is recognised on the basis of the amount paid ot payable for the period
during which services are rendered by the employee.

q. Eamiﬂgs pet share

Basic eatnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable. to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average numbet of equity shares outstanding during the period. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue.

For the purpase of calculating diluted earnings per shate, the net profit or loss for the pericd attributable to equity
shateholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the petiod ate adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shates. :

r. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting done to the chief operating decision
maker. The Company operates in a single operating segment and geographical segment

3. Recent accounting pronouncement

Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’
On 30 March 2019, Ministty of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) has clarified that Ind AS 116 is effective for anual petiods
beginning on or after 1 April 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 sets out the
principles for the recognitiori, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all
leases under a smgle on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard
includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of 'low-value' assets and short-tetm leases (i.e., leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
{i.e., the lease liability} and an asset representing the right to use the undetlying asset duting the lease term (Le., the right-
of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. The Company is evaluating the requitements of the amendment and the effect on the
financial statements is being evaluated.

Amcndment to Ind AS 12, Income taxes ‘

On 30 March 2019, Ministty of Corporate Affaits ("MCA™) has notified Appendlx C to Ind-AS 12 Income taxes —
“Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”. The amendment to Ind AS 12 requites the entities to consider recognition
and measurement requirements when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. In such a circumstance, an entity
shall recognise and measure its current or defetred tax asset or liability accordingly. The effective date of amendment is 1
April 2019, Futthet, there has been amendments in televant parapraphs in Ind-AS 12 "Income Taxes" which clarifies that
an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit ot loss, other comprehensive income or equity
according to whete the entity originally recognized those past transactions or events in accordance with Ind-AS 109. The
Company is-evaluating the requirements of the amendments and their impact on the financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 19, Employee benefits
The amendment to Ind AS 19 requires the entities to detetmine current service cost using actuarial assumptions and net
interest using discount rate determined at the start of the annual reporting period. However, if an entity re-measutes the
net defined benefit liability {asset) as per the requirement of the standatd, it shall determine current service cost and net
interest for the remainder of the annual repotting period after the plan arnendment curtailment ot settlement using the
actuatial assumptions used to re-measure the net defined benefit liability (asset). The effective date of amendment is 1
April 2019. The Company is evaluating the tequitements of the amendments and their impact on the financial statements.
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Amendment to Ind AS 23, Botrowing costs

On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"} issued an amendment to Ind-AS 23 "Bortowing Costs"
clazifies that if any speclEic borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that
bortowing becomes patt of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalization rate on gencral
bortowings. This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Aptil 2019. The Company is
evaluating the requirements of the amendments and their impact on the financial statements.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

When prepating the financial statements management undettakes a number of judgments, estimates and assumptions
about recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The actual results are likely to differ from the judgments, estimates and assumptions made by management, and will
seldom equal the estimated results.

Information about significant judgments, estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on tecognition
and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses are discussed below:

Significant ﬁtd“gmmt.r:

(i) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of non-financial assets
‘The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of non-financial assets requires assessment of several
external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

(i) Recognition of deferred tax assets
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability of the future
taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised. The recognition of deferted tax assets and
reversal thereof is also dependent upon management decision relating to timing of availment of tax holiday benefits
available undet the Income Tax Act, 1961 which in turn is based on estimates of future taxable profits.

(iii) Contingent liabilities

The Company is the subject of certain legal proceedings which -are pending in various jurisdictions. Due to the
uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is difficult to predict the final outcome of such matters. The cases and claims
against the Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues, which are subject to many
uncertainties, including but not limited to the facts and citcumstances of each particular case and claim, the
‘jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law. In the notmal course of business, management consults with legal
counsel and certain other experts on matters related to litigation and taxes. The Company acctues a Liability when it
is determined that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

Saarces of estimation nncertaingy:

(i) Provisions _ :
At each balance shect date, basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company
assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding warranties and guarantees. However, the actual future
outcome may be different from management’s estimates.

(ii) Fair valuation of financial insttuments
Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fait value of ﬁnancial instruments (where active market
quotes are not ava:lable) This involves developing estimates and assumptions. consistent with how market
patticipants would price the instrument.

(iii) Recoverability of advances/receivables
At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected life, the management assesses
the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables and advances.
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. . Leaschold Plant and Furniture & Office .
Description Land Buildings improvements machinery fixtarcs equipments Vehiclea Computers Total
Gioss Block
As at 1 April 2017 220,67 826.39 - 3,035.13 137.44 53.51 145.39 11559  4,533.92
Additions - 51.46 54.69 541.52 2739 877 - 9.79 693.62
Disposals - - - - - - - - _
As at 31 March 2018 220.67 877.85 54.69 3,576.65 164.83 62.08 145.3% 125.38  5,227.54
Additions - 343 - 695.72 7.82 3.19 - 7.92 749.04
Disposals - - : - - - - - - - -
An at 31 March 2019 220.67 912.24 54.69 4,272.37 172.65 65.27 145.39 133.30  5,976.58
Accumulated depreciation -
As ar 1 Apdl 2017 - 191.00 - 939.78 97.19 28.83 63.47 0954  1,419.81
Chasge for the year - 2531 1.65 268.33 6.79 443 15.09 5.90 321.50
Disposals - - - - - . - - -
As at 31 March 2018 - 216,31 1.65 1,208.11 103.98 33.26 78.56 105.44  1,747.31
Charge for the year - 2783 1.73 297.80 8.75 377 14.25 8.5 362.73
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2019 - 244.14 3.38 1,505.91 112.73 37.03 92.81 114.03  2,110.04
Net block as at 31 March 2018 220.67 661.54 53.04 2,368.54 60.85 28.82 66.83 19.94  3,480.23
Net block as at 31 March 2019 220.67 668.11 51.31 2,766.46 59,92 28.23 52.58 10,27 3,866.54
(i) Contractual obligations
Refer note 38(ii) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
As at As at
) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

§, Capital work-in-progress

Plant and machinery. 86.03 45497

86.03 454.97

() The borrowing cost capitalised during the yeac ended 31 March 2019 amounts to ¥ 18.65 lakh (31 March 2018 ¥ 18.86 lakh).
(i) Movement in capital work in progress:
Particulars Amount
Capital work-in-progress an at 1 Apeil 2017 - 17105
Add: additions during the year 454.97
Less: capitalisation during the year (171.05)
Capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2018 454.97
Add; additions during the year 268.50
Less: capitalisation during the year ‘ (637.44
Capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2019 86.03

(@) During the year, expenses aggrega
aforesai expenses comprises of raw materia

ting to INR 154,03 lakh (31 Macch 2018 INR 454.97 lakh), net off scrap income have been capitalised under capital work-in-progress. The

(This space has been intentionally Joft blank}

1 consumption, personnel costs, power and fuel charges and other related expenses.
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(All amount in ¥ lakh unless otherwise stated)

6. Intangible assets

Description Softwares Patent and Development Total intangible
‘ trademark costs assets
Gross Block
As at 1 April 2017 132.94 30.00 611.94 774.88
Additions 14.17 - 87.26 101.43
As at 31 March 2018 147.11 - 30.00 699.20 876.31
Additions 3.43 - 222,93 226.36
As at 31 March 2019 150.54 30.00 922.13 1,102.67
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1-April 2017 108.08 29.86 118,13 256.07
Amortsation charge for the year 9.42 0.14 91.98 101.54
As at 31 March 2018 117.50 30.00 210.11 357.61
Amottisation charge for the year 10.06 - 114.61 124.67
As at 31 March 2019 127.56 30.00 324.72 482.28
Wet block as at 31 Macch 2018 29.61 - 489.09 518.70
Net block as at 31 March 2019 22.98 - 597.41 620.39
Notes:
(i) Amortisation for the year has been included in line item *Depreciation and amortisation expense’ in statement of profit and loss.
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
7. Intangible assets under development S
Development costs | 551.39 506.89
551.39 506.89
(i) Movement in intangible assets under development:
Particulars : ‘ Amount
Intangible assets under development as at 1 April 2017 273.31
Add: additions during the year 348.46
Less: capitalisation during the year (87.25)
Less: impairment during the year ‘ (27.63)
Intangible assets under development as at 31 Match 2018 506.89
Add: additions during the year T ' 32634
Less; capitalisation during the year (222.9%)
Less: Loss an account of unapproved product development (58.91)
551.39

Intangible assets under development as at 31 March 2019

(ii) Duting the year, expenses aggregating to INR 324.83 lalch (31 March 2018 INR 348.46 lakh), net off scrap income have been capitalised
under intangible assets under development. The aforesaid expenses comprises of raw material consumption, personnel costs, power and fuel chazges

and other related expenses.

(Tbis space has been imentionally lejt blank)
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As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
8 Loans (Non-current)
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 29.53 24.03
' 29.53 24.03

Refer note 44 - Fair value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and note 45 - Financial risk

management for assessment of expected credit losses

9 Non-current tax assets (net)

21.06

Advance tax and TDS recoverable 57.92
57.92 21.06
10 Other non-current assets
Capital advances 37.40 1391
Balance with statutory authorities 1.50 1.50
Prepaid expenses 3.30 518
’ 42.20 20.59
11 Inventories )
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)
Raw materials (refer note (i} below) ' 1,628.83 1,806.23
Work-in-progress 575.34 088.29 -
Finished goods {refer note (ii) below) 196.56 154.55
2,400.73 2,949.07
Notes:
(i) Raw materials include goods in transit amounting to ¥ 60.92 lakh (31 March 2018: I Nil)
(i) Finished goods include goods in transit amounting to ¥ 22,37 lakh (31 March 2018: ¥ 42.12 lakh)
12 Trade receivables
Related Parties (Refer note 39) :
- Unsecured, considered good 1,751.89 86.96
Other trade receivables . :
- Unsecured, considered good . 1,787.98 1,735.57
' - ' 3,539.87 1,822.53
Less: allowance for credit impaired - -
3,539.87 1,822.53

Notes: ' :
i) The carcying values of trade receivables are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair values.
(i) Refer note 45 - Financial risk management for assessment of expected credit losses.

(i

13 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
- in current accounts
- deposits with original maturity less than three months (refer note (i) below)

Trade receivables include ¥ 1751.89 lakh (31 March 2018 T 86.96 lakh) due from related parties. For details refer note 39 - related party disclosures

Cash in hand

10.90 1,003.01
128.13 89.21
0.87 3,07
139.90 1,095.29

The carrying values are a reasonable approximate of their fair values.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in ¥ lakh unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat :
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 :

14" Other bank balances: :

Deposits with original maturity more than three months but less than twelve months 13.58 99.80 1'
' 13.58 99.80
Notes: ‘

(i) Bank deposits which are under restriction: |
Fixed deposits with banks held as margin money for letter of credits, bank _ © 1358 99.80 !
guarantees, working capital facilities and buyers credit

(i) Bank deposits which are under restriction ’ _' 13.58 : 99.80

(i) The cacrying values are a reasonable approximate of their fair values.

15 Loans (Current)

Unsecured, considered good _ . .
Security deposits . 21.56 . 25.54

21.56 25.54
The carrying values are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair valuoes.

16 Other financial assets (Current)

Insurance claim receivable (tefer note 36.1) - 50.29
Other receivable ' ' 0.74 -

‘ 0.74 50,29
The carrying values ate considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair values.

17 Other current assets
Advances to suppliers . ) : . 207.95 55.90
Balances with statitory authorities _ 465.24 ' 1,208.87
Staff advances . : 41.12 56.66
Prepaid expenses 14.08 25.40

' ) 728.39 1,346.83

(This space bas been intentionally feft blank)
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18 Equity share capital
Authorised share capital .
5,000,000 {31 March 2018 : 5,000,000) Equity shares of ¥ 10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital
3,642,100 (31 March 2018 : 3,642,100) Equity shares of ¥ 10 cach

(i) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31March 2018
500.00 500.00
500.00 500.00
364.21 364.21
364.21 364.21

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares

and pays dividends in Indian ¥.

In the event of liquidation of the Cornpany, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all Liabilities. The

distribution will be in proporton to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(ii) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
. No. of shares (¥ lakh) No. of shares {¥ lakh)
Equity share capital of ¥ 10 each fully paid up -
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,042,100 364.21 3,642,100 364.21
‘Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 3,642,100 364.21 3,642,100 364
(iif} Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company as at balance sheet date
As on 31 March 2019 As on 31 March 2018
No. of shares % holding No. of shazes % holding
Amber Enterprises India Limited 0
(formerly Amber Enterprises (India) Private Litited) 3,642,000 99.997% 3,642,000 90.997%
(iv) Shares held by holding company:
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its Holding Company are as below:
As on 31 March 2019 As on 31 March 2018
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding _
Amber Enterprises India Limited 99.997% 3,642,000 99.997%

{forwrerly Asmber Enferprises (Tudia) Privarte Linsited) 3,642,000

v) ‘The Company has neither issued equity shares puzsuant to contiact without payment being received in cash or any bonus shares nor has there been any

buy-back of shares in the current year and five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

19  Otherequity

Securities premium reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes during the year
Balance at the end of the year

General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Loss for the year
Add : Other comprehensive income
- Re-mensurement (Josses)/ gains on defined benefit obligations
- Income tax relating to above item
Balance at the end of the year

‘Total other equity
Nature and purpose of other reserves

Securities premium .

Asat Ag at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
-0.05 0.05
0.05 0.05
54,48 54.48
54.48 54.48
2,114.27 2,200.54
{160.91) (103.34)
(2.48) 12,06
1.16 : (3.99)
1,952.04 2,114.27
2,006.57 2,168.80

Securities premium represents premivm received on issue of shares. The securities premium is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

General reserve

General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. General reserve is created by a transfer from one

component of équity to ancther.

* (This space has been infentionatly kot blank}
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Ag at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
20 Long-term borrowings

Secured .
Term loan [refer note ()] 541.02 724.95
Vehicle loan [refer note (] . - 4.58

: 541.02 729.53

Notes:

(i} Repayment terms and security disclosure for long-term borrowings (including current maturities) outstanding as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018

{a) Term loan from RBL Bank Limited amounting to ¥ 352.21 lakh (31 March 2018: T 507.45 lakh) carrying interest cate @ 9.75% p.a. (31 March 2018: 10,75% p-a.) is repayable in
9 quarterly installments with last instalment payable on 30 June 2021,

(b} Term loan from Yes Bank amounting to ¥ 375.00 lakh (31 March 2018; ¥ 475.00 lakh) cacrying interest rate @ 10.45% p.a. (31 March 2018: 9.45%) is repayable in 15 quarterly
installments with last instalment payable on 11 December 2022, : :

(9 Term loan from RBL Bank Limited amounting to X 113.37 lakh (31 March 2018: ¥ Nil) carrying iuterest mte @ 9.95% p.a. (31 Macch 2018: Nil) is repayable in 11 quartedly
installments with last instalment payable on 30 June 2021.

Above lpans are secured by first pard passu chatge on all the present and future curtent assets of the company, first pari passu charge on moveable praperty, plant and equipment
of the Company (excluding those which are under exclusive hypothecated with other Banks/Fls), first pad passu charge on Plot No. 92, Sectos-6, Faridabad in the name of the
Company and first pari passu charge on Plot No. 99, Sector-6, Faridabad in the name of Amber Enterprises India Limited (formerly Amber Enterprises (India} Private Limited}.
The term loan s also secured by Corporate guacantees of Amber Enterprises India Limited (formerly Amber Enterprises (India) Private Limited) and personal guarantees of Mr.
Jasbir Singh (Director) and Mr. Daljit Singh (Managing Director) of the Company. ‘

Yehicle loans
(d} Vehicle loan from "Toyota Financial Private Limited amounting to  4.71 lakh (31 March 2018: ¥ 11.31 lakh) carrying interest rate @ 9.25 % p-a. (31 March 2018: 9.25% p.a.) is
repayable in § monthly installments with last instalment payable on 10 November 2019,

Above loans are secured agaiust hypathecation of specific vehicles purchased out of the proceeds of these loans.

(if) Refer note 44 - Fair value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and note 45 - Financial risk management for assessment
of expected credit losses :

(iii} Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activitics

Short-term
L?ng-ttlarm . borro“;ings
borrowings (including Tatal
current maturities)
As at 01 April 2017 312.32 1,982.27 2,204.59
Cash flows:
Proceeds from borrowings 849.99 763.85 1,613.84
Repayment of borrowings (166,95} - (166.95)
Non-cash: .
Foreign currency fluctuation impact - ' 9.46 9.46
Impact of borrowings measured at amortised cost : (1.60) ' (1.22) (2.82)
As at 31 March 2018 : 993.76 2,754.36 - 3,748.12
Cash flows: .
Proceeds from borrowings ) 126.00 584.55 710,55
Repayment of bocrowings ’ } (273.15) - (273.15)
Non-cash: ) .
Forelgn currency fluctuation impact - 13.26 13.26
Impact of borrowings measured at amortised cost (1.33) . - (1.33)
As at 31 March 2019 845,28 3,352.17 4,197.45
21  Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benelits® . ‘
Provision for gratuity (unfunded) ) © 40,30 35.69
Provision for compensated absences . . 27.03 29.26

67.33 64.95

*For disclosures related to provision for employee benefits, refer note 43 - Employee benefit obligations.

{(This spave bas been intentionally kft blank)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
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. Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
22 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Deferred tax liability arising on account of :
Property, plant and equipment 318.93 368.24
Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost - i4
Tax impact on income 0.74 -
Gross deferred tax liability 319,57 369.65
Deferred tax asset irising on account of :
Provision for gratuity 11.04 12,09
Provision for compensated absences 7.50 10.10
Unabsorbéd depreciation 214,52 187.65
Tax impact of other expenses charged in the financial statement but 7.21 8.28
allowable as deductions in future years under income tax
240,27 218.12
Net deferred tax liabilities 79.30 151.53
Notes: .
(i) Movement in deferred tax liabilities (net) for the year ended 31 March 2019;
" Particulars Asat Re;:sit;’l:::ell:;t:wr Recognised statement Asat
31 March 2018 . X of profit and loss 31 March 2019
income/ equity : :
Deferred tax liability arising on account of :
Propecty, plant and equipment 368.24 - {49.41) 318.83
Financial assets and Habilities measured at amoriised cost 141 - (1.41) -
Tax impact on income - - 0.74 0.74
" 369.65 - (50.08) 319.57
Delerred tax asset arising on account of
Provision for gratuity 12.09 1.16 221) 11.04
Provision for compensaied absences 10.10 - (2.60) 7.50
Unabsorbed depreciation 187.65 - 26.87 214.52
"T'ax impact of other expenses charged in the financial statement but 8.28 _ (wom 7.21
allowable as deductions in future years under income tax '
218.12 116 20.99 240,27
Net deferred tax liabilities 151.53 (1.16) {71.07) 79.30
(ii) Movement in deferred tax assets Wahilities (net) for year ended 31 March 2018:
Particulars Asat Re::il;:::]:l;:s;?er Recognised statement Asat
- 1 April 2047 . N of profit and loss 31 March 2018
income/ equity :
Deferred tax liability arising on account of :
Property, plant and equipment 315.88 - 52,36 368.24
Financial assets and liabilites measured at amortised cost 2.23 - {0.82) 141
Tax impact on income 34.86 - {34.86) -
352.97 - 16.68 369.65
Deferred tax asset arising on account of
Provision for gratuity 15.17 (3.99 091 12.09
Provision for compensated absences 16.33 : - {6.23) 10,10
Unabsorbed depreciation 136.84 - 50.81 187.65
Tax impact of other expenses chasged in the financial statement but 8.28 . _ A28
allowable as deductions in future years under income tax ' i
Provision for doubtful debts 2.92 - (292 -
Others ’ 1.82 - (1.82) -
T 18136 (3.99 40.75 218.12
Net defeered tax liabilities 17161 3.99 (24.07) _151.53

(This space bas besu intentionally bfi blank)
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23 Shont-term horrowings

Secured

From banks:
Working capital demand loan
Buyers credit facility
Packing credit facility
Cash credit facility
Domestic bill discounting facility

ry information for the year ended 31 March 2019

Secuity disclosure for short-term borrowings outstanding as at 51 March 2019 and 3 March 2018 )
Worldng capital demand loans, cash credit facilifies and domestic bill discounting facility are secured by first pad passu charge an all the present and future cureent assets of the
Company, first pari passu charge on moveable property, plant and equipment of the Company (excluding those which are under exclusive hypothecated with other Banks/FIs),
first pari passu charge on Plot No. 92, Sector-6, Faridabad in the name of the Company and first par passu charge on Plot No. 99, Sectoe-6, Faridabad in the name of Amber
Enterprises India Limited. The loans are also secured by corporate guarniees of Amber Enterprises India Limited and personal guaraatees of Mr. Jasbir Singh {Director) and

Mr. Daljit Singh (Managing Director) of the Company. These facilities carry interest ra

2.49% p.a. ro 12.00% p.a)

24 Trade payables

Dues of miceo enterprses and small enterprises [refer note (i} below]

Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises *

*ncludes T 309.76 lakh (31 March 2018: T 168,61 lakh) payable to related pacties. For details refer note 39.

As at As ar
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

1,140.00 2,000.00

- 44.61

- 384.53

1,571.74 210.34
640.43 114.88.

3,352.17 2,754.36

5,081.66

te ranging from 9.00% p.a. to 10.40% p.a. (31 March 2018: from LIBOR + 0.75% ie.

4,664.43

5,081.66

4,664.43

) Dues to micro and small enterprises pursuant to section 22 of the Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act

On the basis of Factors including but not limited w MSMED certificate obtained from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act ,2006 (MSMED Act, 2006), certificate from Chartered Accountant regarding gross investment in Plznt & Machinery as on 31 March 19, latest

Audited Balance Sheet and based on the information available

i) the principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting

with the company, the following are the details:

. Nil Nil
period;
i) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the Nil Nit
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting period;Interest accrued and due thereon remaining unpaid )
iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid bat beyond ’ Nil Nil
the appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under this Act; ' -
" iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accountng period; and ] Nil Nil
v) the amount of furthet interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding pedods, untl such date when the Nl .NiJ
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the pucpose of disallowance as a deductible
i) The cacrying values are considered to be reasonable approximation of their fair values.
25  Other financial liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debts (refer note 20())
Term loan 299.50 257.50
Vehicle loan 4.77 6.73
Interest accrued on borrowings 9.22 12.45
Creditors for capital goods 21.04 16.92
Expenses payables - 518.01
Employee related payables 95.6% 7158
QOther accrued liabilities 26.85 19.23
: 457.07 902.42
The carrying values are considered to be reasonable approximation of their fair values,
26 Other current liabilities
‘Advance from customers 2623 528.43
Payable to statutory authonities 14.64 18.72
40.87 547.15
27  Short-term provisions
Provision for employee beaefits
Provision for gratuity (unfunded) 2,18 0.87
Provision for compensated absences 1.82 1.28
4.00 2.15
For disclosures related to provision for employee benefits, refer note.43.2 Employee benefit obligations,
_ G\\P.NU_I Ok @
28 Current tax liabilities (net) %
Provision for income tax [nef] 104,57 66.29
104,57 66.29
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29

30

3

32

33

3

Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Domestic
Export

Other operating revenucs
Scrap sales
Export incentive

Other income

Interest income

Foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
"Provision for doubtful debts written back.
Freight subsidy against export

Liability written back

Miscellaneous receipts

Cost of materials consumed
Opening stock

Add: Purchases made during the year
Less: Closing stock

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Opening stock

Finished goods

Work-in-progress

Closing stock
Finished goods *
Work-in-progress

Change in stock

Change in excise duty on closing stock

* Finished goods include goods in transit amounting to 322,37 hkh (31 March 2018: ¥ 42.12 Iakh)

Employee benefits expense

Salary, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Por disclosures related to provision for einployee benefits, refer note 43 - Employee benefit obligations.

Finance costs

Interest on:

- Long term borrowing
Term loan
Vehicle loan

- Short term borrowing
Foreign currency loan
Working capital demand loan
Cash credit
Packing credit facility
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Letter of credit and buyers credit

- Other
Loan processing fee
Bill discounting charges
Interest on income tax
Interest on others

Less: borrowing costs capitalised [refer note 5(3))

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 Macch 2019 31 March 2018
11,679.82 11,135.30
1,501.21 307257
462.44 419.50
57.27 119.86
13,700.74 14,747.23
8.99 9.71
58.50 30.50
- - 8.83
- 20.00
2317 7.06
0.74 392
91.40 80.02
1,806.23 1,435.62
10,051.16 11,56%.56
1,567.91 ° 1,806.23
10,289.48 11,198.95
154.55 260.94
988,29 561.48
1,142,84 822.42
196.56 154.55
575.34 088.29
771.90 1,142.84
370.94 (320.42)
. (22.78)
370.94 (343.20)
510,00 504.33
30.92 48.56
26.01 26.73
566.93 579.62
95.25 70.37
0.7 1.38
- 10.15
144,19 169.01
110.60 92.79
2.45 5.06
13.26 5871
12.82 17.97
5.98 8.29
115.75 133.27
0.55 0.26
1.32 15.66
502.88- 582.92
(18.65) (18.86)
484.23

564.06
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36

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation (also refer note 4)
Amortisation (also refer note 6)

Other expenses

Job work charges
Contractual labour charges
Power and fuel chaiges
Clearing and forwarding expense
Freight outward '
Lepal and professional charges (refer note (i)
Travelling and conveyance expense -
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery
- Buildings
- Others
Insurance
Rent
- Plant and machinery
- Buildings
Fees, rates and taxes
Communication expenses
Donation _
Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note 48)
Advance / balances written off
Bad debts
Vehicle running expenses
Director sitting fees
Printing and stationary

- Business promotion expenses

Loss by fire

Loss on account of unapproved product development

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress
Security charges

Bank charpes

Miscellaneous expenses

iy Payments to the auditor:

For statutory audit and limited review
Reimbutsement of expenses
Total

Forthe yearended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

362,73 327.50
124.67 101.54
487.40 429,04
328.55 416.09
685.03 710.80
97.60 72.98
24,75 48.38
165.80 257.72
37.73 64.58
37.81 41.80
16.42 20.06
7.81 1.90
12.29 17.28

7.53 797
1222 6.75
146.85 79.30
1295 13.47
12.76 27.38
0.25 0.28
. 12,77
4.76 117.60
18.90 38.32
10.50 11.53
2.50 2,10
5.80 5.68
12.56 8.93
. 37.51

58.91 -

- 27.63
45.36 23.49
9.71 8.89
49.79 21.61
1,825.14 2,103.30
13.00 8.50
1.03 1.18
14,03 9.68

(This space has been intentionally lf? blank)
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Aok

()

For the year ended For the year ended

Barnings per share _ 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 |
Loss after tax ) (160.91) . (103.34)
Weighted average number of equity shares 3,642,100 . 3,642,100
Basic and diluted earning per share (%) {4.42) (2.84)
Nomioal value per equity share (%) . 10.00 10.00
Coutingent liabilities and commitments®
Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(i} Contingent liabilities
a) Income tax demanda }
Assessment Year- 2008-09% - 012
Assessment Year- 2009-10* 7 - 0.33
Assessment Year- 2010-11% - 0.14
Assessment Year- 2011-12% : : 1.37 0.14
Assessment Year- 2012-13* 0.24 1.40
Assessment Year- 2013-14% ) - 0.31
Assessment Year- 2014-15% ’ - 0.02
Assessment Year- 2015-16* - 0.03
Assessment Year- 201617+ : : ’ - -
Assessment Year- 2017-18*% ' . - 034
Assessment Year- 2018-19% - 0.03
b) Others . .
Bonus for fnancial year 2014-15%F 9.78 : 9.78

The Company has been intimated of demand aggregating T 1.61 lakh (31 March 2018: X 2.86 lakh) for various assessment years (as mentioned above) on account of non/ late filing
of TDS returns, and incorrect submissions of data with income tax avthorites. Based on the advice from independent tax experts and development on the appeals, the Company s
confident that the addilional tax so demanded will not be sustained on the completion of appeallate proceedings and accerdingly, pending the decisions by the appeallate authorities,
no provision has been made in these financial statements. :

The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 dated 31 December 2015 {which was made effective from 01 April 2014) revised the thresholds for coverage of employee eligible for
Donus and also enhanced the ceiling limits for computation of bonus, Howeves, taking cognizance of the stay granted by various High Courts and based on legal opinion obtained by
the management, the Company has not recognised any differential amount of honus for the pesiod 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 (% 9.78 lakh) and accordingly has recognised the
expense as per the amended provisions w.e.f. 01 April 2015 and onwacds.

Interest on certain claims may be payable as aod when the outcome of the related claim is determined.

The Cbmpany has certain litigations and based on legal advice of in-house legal team, the management believes that no materal liabiliey will devolve on the Company in respect of
these litigations. :

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India has pronounced a ruling dated 28 February 2019 in which it is held that allowance’ paid to employees, will be included in the scope of ‘basic
wages’ and thus, will be subject to provident fund contributions. Petitions have been filed with Hon'ble Supreme Court of India seeking additional clarification with respect to the
application of this ruling. As this ruling has not prescribed any cladfication w.r.t. to its application, the Company is in the process of evaluating its impact. Management believes that
this will not result in any material liability on the Company. )

Commitments

‘The Company has the following commitments :
: Asat Asat
31 Masch 2019 31 March-2018
Bstimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of 722 10.36
advances)
7.22 10.36 .

{This space bas been Jyft blank inteutionaly)
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A.

1.

II1.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinacy course of business for the year ended 31 March 2019

Related party disclosures
Names of the relaled parties and related party relationship -
Holding Company

Entities over which significant influence is exercised by the
company /key management personnel (either individually or
with others) :

Key management personnel (KMP)

Mr. Daljit Singh (Managing Director)

M. Jasbic Singh (Dicector)

Ms. Amandecp Kaur (Director)

Mr. Girish Kumar Ahuja (Independent Director till 25 September 2018)
Ms. Sudha Pillai (Independent Director till 25 September 2018)

Mr. Satwinder Singh (Independent Diccctor till 25 September 2018)

Ms. Mania Sackar (Company Secretary) (till 31 Ociober 2018)

Amber Enterprises India Limited

Appserve Appliances Prt.Lid.
IL JIN Electeonics (India) Private Limited

5 No.

Particulars

Holding Company

Entities over which significant
influence is exercised

Key management personnel

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

31 March 2{1H8

@)
)

b)

4

€)

h)

i)

)]

‘Transaclions made during the year:

Sale of goods
Sale ol MEIS license
Purchases

Rent paid

Repair and Maintenance Services received
Appserve Appliance Private Limited
IL JIN Electronics {India) Privare Limited |

KMP remunecration

Director sitting fees to independent directors
Post-employment benefits

Salary paid*

¥Name of KMP
Mr. Draljit Singh
Mr. Jasbir Singh
Ms. Mania Sackac

Personal guaraniee taken from KMP's with respect to term loan and
warking capital loan

Mz, Jasbir Singh

M. Daljit Singh

Personal guarantee surrender to KMP's with respect to term loan and
working capital loan )

Mr. Jashir Singh

Mr. Daljit Singh

Corporate guarantee taken from Holding Company with respect to term
Ioan and working capital

Corporate guarantee surrender to Holding Company with respect to

working capital

414981

91.92

36.00

900.00

50.00

3,696.80

34.07

108.64

36.00

3,200,00

2,700.00

0.26
0.09

2.50
7216
40.20

30.00
1.96

900.00
90000

50.00
50.00

210
0.14
7234

40.20
30.00
2,14

3,200.00
3,200,00

2,700.00
2,700.00
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Particulars

Holding Company

Enutities over which signilicant
influence is exercised

Key management personnel

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

®

b)

<)
)

Balances at year end

Trade receivables -

Trade payables
Amber Enterprises India Limited
IL JIN Electronics {India) Private Limited

Advance from customer

Corporate guarantee taken from Holding Company with respect to term
loan and working capital*

Personal guarantee taken from KMP's with respect to term loan and
working capital loan*

Mr. Jasbir Singh

Mr. Daljit Singh

Salary payable

M. Draljit Singh

Mr. Jasbic Singh

s, Mania Sackac

1,751.89

309.64

6,600.00

B6.96

-168.61

520,01

5,750.00

6,600.00
6,600.00

219
an

5,750.00
5,750:00

0.23

* Guarantees taken by the Company includes pecsonal guarantees of Mr. Jasbir Singh and Mr. Daljit Singh and corporate guacantee from Holdin
loans. The original sanctioned limits of working capital borrowings and outstanding balance of term loans by the banks has been disclosed above.

(This speace bas been Iyt blank insentionatly)

g company for working capital borrowings and term
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For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Tax expense
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss
Curtent tax expense Co- -
Deferred tax : (71.07) (24.07)
(71.07) : (24.07)

The major components of income tax expense and the reconclhatlon of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of at 26.00% and the teported
tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Particulacs For the year ended For the year ended
. 31 Macch 2019 31 March 2018
Loss before tax : ’ (231,98) (127.41)
Income tax using the Company's domestic tax rate * ' 26.00% 33.06%
Expected tax expense [A] ' ' (60.30) (42.13)
Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense s
Non-deductible expenses/non-taxable income ) (10.99) 19.30
Others . 0.22 (1.24)
Total adjustments [B] ‘ (10.77) 18.06
Actual tax expense [C=A+B] (71.07) (24.07)
* Domestic tax rate applicable to the Compauy has been computed as follows
Base tax rate i 25% 30%
Surcharge (% of tax) ’ 0% 7%
Cess (% of tax) _ . : 4% 3%
Applicable rate 26.00%  33.06%

Details of assets pledged/ hypothecated as sccurity:
‘The catrying amounts of assets pledged/ hypothecated as security for long-term and shott-term borrowmgs are:

As at Asat
31 Macch 2018 31 March 2018

Current assets : : .

Inventories ' : 2,400.73 2,949.07
Ttade receivables 3,539.87 1,822,553
Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances S 15348 1,195.09
Loans, othet financial and other assets : 750.69 1,422.66
Non-current assels _

Property, plant and equipment ) 3,866.54 3,480.23

Leases

The Company has entered into operating leases for its offices, factory, machinery and puest houses that are renewable on a periodic basis and are
cancellable at Company's option. Total lease payments recognised in the statement of profit and loss with respect to aforementioned premlses is T
159.07 lakh (31 March 2018: ¥ 86.05 lakh).

(T his space has beew loft blank intentionally)
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Employee benefit obligations

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 51 March 2018
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Giatuity 2.18 40.30 0.87 35.69
Compensated absences 1.82 27,05 128 1. 29,26
'Total 3.99 67.32 2.15 64.95
A Disclosure of gratuity
(i) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:
Description For the year ended Faor the year ended
- 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current service cost 745 7.76
Interest cost 2.83 3.56
Net impact on profit {before tax) 10.28 11.32
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognised dusing the year 248 {12.06)
Amount recognised in total comprehensive income 12,76 {0.74)
(ii) Change in the present value of obligation:
Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year - 36,56 45.90
Current service cost 745 776
Interest cost 2.83 3.56
Benefits paid (6.85) (8.60)
Actuarial loss/(gain) 248 {12.06)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 42.47 36.56
(iit) Breakup of actuarial (gain)/loss:
Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Actuarial {gain)/loss from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumption 1.16 0.73)
Actuarial (gain)/loss from experience adjustment 1.32 {11.33)
"Total actuarial (gain)/loss 2.48 (12.06)
(iv) Actuarial assumptions
Description . For the year ended For the year ended
. 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Discount rate 7.75 % per annum 7.75 % per annum
Rate of increase in compensation levels 6.00 % per anoum 6.00 % per annum
Expected rate of return on plan assets 0.00% 0.00%
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years
Notes:
a) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Indian Government bonds as at the balance sheet date for the estimated terms of obligations.
b) The estimates of future salary increases considered takes inta account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
c) The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 18.00 years (31 March 2018 : 18,00 years)
(v) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability
Description For the year ended Por the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Impact of change in discount rate .
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 42.47 36.56
- Impact due to increase of 1.00 % 38.67 3253
- Impact due to decrease of 1.00% 46,90 41.36
Impact of change in palary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 4247 36.56
- Impact due to increase of 1 % 46.94 41.40
- Impact due to decrease of 1% 38.58 32.43

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculadng the sensitivity of the defind benefir abligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
" defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied which was applied while calculating the defined

benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

"The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to previous year.

(This space bas been Jeft blank intentionally)
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{vi) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Description

Por the year cnded For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
'Within next 12 months 217 1.03
Detween 1-5 years 11.81 6.93
Beyond 5 years 37.90 38.80

(vii) The expected contribution to the plan for next annual reporting period amounts to T 9.90 lakh {previous year - X 9.68 lakh).

{This space has been Rft blank intentionaty)
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44 Fair value disclosures

(i) Fair values hicrarchy )
Financial assets and Anancial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are divided into three Levels of a fair value hieracchy. The three levels are defined based
on the obsecvability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined sing valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable macket data rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(ii) Financial assels measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements
The Company does not have any financial instruments which are measuced at fair value either through statement of profit and loss or through other comprehensive income.

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which faic value is disclosed is as follows:

s M March 2019 31 March 2018

Particulars . Level
: Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Pair value

Financial assets .
Loans Level 3 29.53 29.56 24.03 24,52
Total financial assets 29.53 29.56 24,03 24.52
PFinancial liabilities
Borrowings - Level 3 854.51 854.51 1,006.21 1,006.21
‘Total financial liabilities : 854.51 854.51 : 1,006.21 1,006.21

The management assessed that faic values of current loans, current financial assets, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, short term borrowings, trade
payables and other current financial liabilities approximate their respective carrying amounts lasgely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments, The fair value of the Fnancial
asscts and Liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale, The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the Fair values:

@ Long-term fixed-rate receivables are evaluated by the Compaity based on parameters such as interest rates, individual creditworthiness of the customer and other market dsk factors.

(i} The fair values of the Company’s fixed interest-benring loans and receivables ace determined by applying discounted cash flows (‘DCF’) method, uvsing discount rate that reflects the
issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 March 2019 was nssessed to be insignificant,

(i) All the other long term borrowing facilities except vehicle loans (immaterial) availed by the Company are variable rate facilities which are subject to changes in underlying interest rate
indices, Further, the credit spread on these facilities are subject to change with changes in Company's credinvorthiness. The management believes that the current rate of interest on these
loans are in close approximation from market rates applicable to the Company. Therefore, the management estimates that the Fair value of these horrewings are approximate to their
respective carrying values, :

45 Financial risk management

(i} Financial instruments by category

As at , As at
\ 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Particulars ]

FVIPL FVOCI Amortised coat FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Financial agsets . . .
Loans ’ - - 51.09 - - 49.57
Trade receivables - - 3,539.87 - - 1,822,53
Cash and cash equivalents - - 139.90 - - 1,095.29
Other bank balances - - 13.58 - - 50.80
Other financial assets : - - 0.74 - - 50.29
Total . - - 3,745.18 - - 3,117.48
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 420667 [ - - 3,760.57
‘Trade payable . ) - - 5,081.66 - - 4,664.43
Other financial liabilities : - - 143.58 - - - " 625.74
Total . . - - 9,431,92 - - 9,050.74

ii} Risk Management ) ) .
The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's Board of Directors has overalt responsibility. for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the sisk and the related impact in the financial

statements. _

Risk Exposure arising from - Measurement __|Management

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Ageing analysis Bank deposits, diversification of asset base, credit Limits and collateral,
receivables, financial assets measured . ’

Liquidity sk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow Availability of committed credit lines and borrowing Facilities

forecasts .
Matket nisk - foreign exchange Recognised financial assets and Cash flow forecasting Fonward contract/hedging, if required
. ) liabilities not denominated in Indian

Market risk - interest rate Long-term and short-teom Sensitivity analysis Negotiation of terms that reflect the market factors

borrowings at varable rates i

The Company’s risk management is cacried out by a central treasury depactment (of the Company) under policies approved by the board of directors. The boacd of directors provides
principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange osk, intercst rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.
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A) Credit sisk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fuils to discharge an obligation to the Company. The Compﬁny is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments, for example by granting
loans and receivables to customers, placing deposits, etc. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the cacrying amount of following types of financial assets.

- cash and cash equivalents,

- trade receivables,

- loans & receivables carded at amortised cost, and
- deposits with banks

a) Credit risk management

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on interal credit rating system, continuously monitoring defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either
individually or by the company, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Internal credit mting is performed for each class of fnancial instruments with diffexent
characteristics, The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.

ArLow
B: Medium
C: High
Assets under ceedit risk —
" Credit rating Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
. |A: Low Loans 51.00 49.57-
Other financial assets 0.74 50.29
Cash and cash equivalents 139.90 1,095.29
Other bank balances 13.58 - 99.80
‘Trade receivables 3,539.87 1,822,553

Cash and vash equivalents and bank deposits
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank depasits and accounts in different banks.

 Trade receivables .
The Company closely monitoss the credit-worthiness of the debtors through internal systems that are configured to define credit Limits of customers, thereby, limiting the credit risk to
pre-calculated amounts. The Company assesses increase in ceedit risk on an ongoing basis for amounts receivable that become past due,

Orler financial assels measyred al amortised cost )
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost includes security deposits and others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of
such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal controt system in place ensure the amounts ace within defined limits.

b) Expected credit losses
Trude receivables
Company's major trade receivables are with credit worcthy counteeparties. Therefore, these trade receivables are considered high quality and accordingly no life time expected credit losses
are recognised on such receivables based on simplified appzoach. The Company considers that trade receivables are not credit impaired as these are receivable from credit worthy
counterparties.

Other finandial asseis nreasired af amortised cosi ) _

The Company provides for expected credit losses on loans and advances by assessing individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit losses. Since this category includes
loans and receivables of varied natures and purpose, there is no trend that the Company can draws to apply consistently to entice population For such financial assets, the Company's
policy is to provides for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provides for lifetime expected credit Josses upon significant increase in credit dsk. The Company
does not have any expected loss based impairment recogaised on such assets considering their low credit risk narure.

B) Liquidity risk .
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficicnt cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains Aexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed Facilities.

- Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the
liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major curcencies and considering the level
of liquid assets necessary to mect these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against inteenal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

a) Financing arrangements .
‘The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

31 March 2059 | 31 Masch 2018
- Bxpiring within one vear {cash credit and other facilities) 1,703.59 -
- Bxpiring beyond one year (bank loans) - -
' 1,703,59 -

'The bank overdeaft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

b) Maturities of financial liabilities :

The rables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities.
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The amounts disclosed in the table are the conteactual undiscounted cash fows. Balances due within 12 manths equal their careying balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant,

31 March 2019 Less than 1 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 Total
year years

Non-derivative

Borrowings including interest 3,737.86 599,98 . 4,337.84

Trade payable 5,081.66 - - - 5,081.66

Other financial liabilities - 143.58 - - - 143.58

Total 8,963.10 599,93 - - 9,563.08

31 March 2018 Less than 1 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 Total
year yeara

Non-derivative

Borrowings including interest 3,109.69 71523 78.83 - 3,963.75

‘Trade payable 4,664.43 - - - 4,604.43

Other financiat liabilides 638.19 . - - - 638.19

Total 8,412.31 775.23 78.83 - 9,266.37

C} Market Risk
a) Foreign currency risk

‘The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, prmaily with tespect to the US Dollar, Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets

and liabilities denominated in 2 currency that is not the Company’s functional currency.

Poreign carrency risk exposure in TNR: )
The Company exposure to foreign curcency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows:

Particulars 3! March 2012 | 31 March 2018
Financial assets

Trade receivables 261.73 543.43
Financial liabilities

‘Trade payables 359.71 181.10
Shott term borrowings - 422,35
Net exposura to foreign currency risk (liabilities) (97.98) (60.02)
Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.

Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
USD sensitivity .
INR/USD- increase by 100 bps {31 March 2018 100 bps)* {0.98) (0.60)
INR/USD- deceease by 100 bps (31 Macch 2018 100 bps)* 0.98 0.60

* Holtding alf other sariables constont

b) Interest rate risk
i) Liabilitics

The Company’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. The Cdmpany is exposed to changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings

at variable interest rates. The Company’s investments in fixed deposits all pay fixed interest rates.

Inierest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Variable rate borrowing 4,192.68 3,736.81
Fixed rate borrowing 4.77 11,31
‘T'otal borrowings 4,197.45 3,748.12
Amount disclosed under other current financial liabilites 304.27 264.23
‘Amount dislosed under borrowings 3,893.18 3,483,589
Sensitivity

Below is the sensitivity of profit oz loss and equity changes in interest rates.

Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Interest sensitivity*

Interest rates — increase by 100 bps (31 March 2018 100 bps)* 41.93 3137
Interest mites — decsease by 100 bps (31 March 2018 160 bps)* (41.93) (37.37)

* Holding alf ather rariables consiant

i) Assets

The Company’s fised deposits are cartied at amortised cost and ace fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the

cacrying amount nor the future cash flows will Auctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

¢) Price rigk
‘The Company does not have any significant investments in equity instruments which ceeate an exposure io price risk.
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46 Capital management
The Company’ s capital management objectives are
- to ensure the Company’s ability to ¢ontinue as a going concern
- o provide an adequate return to sharcholders
The Company mouitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet.
Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficieat overalt financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the
subordination levels of the Company’s various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions

and the risk chacacteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital steucture, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, zeturn
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce deb.

Partlculars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Total borrowings* 845.20 093.76
‘Total equity ) 2,370.78 2,533.01
Net debt to equity ratio 0.36 0.39

¥Tolal borvowings doesa't Sustuides short-tenn borrewings,

(This #me bas been ft blank intentionally)
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Revenue from Conltracts with Customers

Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Ind AS 115™), establishes a framework for deteemining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised and
requires disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from customer contracts. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised through a 5-step

approach: ©

(© Identify the contract(s) with customer;

(i) Identify separate pecformance obligations in the contract;

(iii) Determine the transaction price;

() Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and
(¥) Recognise revenuc when a performance obligation is satisfied.

The Company has adopted the standard on 1 April 2018 on a modified retrospective basis with a cumulative catch-up adjustment booked o retained earnings as at 1 April 2018 as if the
standard had always Leen in effcct, The standard is applied only to contracts that are not completed as at 1 April 2018. Comparative information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under the accounting standacds in effect for those periods. The adoption of the new standard did not cesult in any material adjustments to the Company’s net income.

Disaggregation of sevenue

The Company has pecformed a disageregated analysis of sevenues considering the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues. This includes disclosuze of revenues by peography and

timing of recognition.
Revenue flrom operations 8ale of products | Other operating Total

: revenue™®
Revenue by geography .
Domestic 11,679.82 519.71 12,199.53
Export 1,501.21 - 1,501.21
‘Total 13,181.03 519.11 13,700.74
Revenue by time .
Revenue recognised at point in time 13,700.74
Revenue recognised over time -
Totat 13,700.74

* Scrap sales and expont incentive have been included in domestic revenue

Bevenue recognised in relation 1o contract liabililics

Ind AS 115 also requires disclosure of ‘revenue recognised in the teporting period that was incleded in the conteact liability balance at the beginning of the pesiod’

in the reporting period from pecformance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied} in previous periods. Same has been disclosed as below:

and ‘revenue recognised

Description Year ended

. 31 March 2019
Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period 527.89
Revenue recognised in the ceporting period from performance obligations satisficd {or partially satistied) in previous periods -
Total ] 5§27.89

Assets and fiabilities related to contraces with cusiomers
) As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

Description Non-current Current Non-current Current
Contract linbilities related to sale of goods .
Advance from customers : . ' - 26.23 - 528.43
Reconciliation of revenue recognised in Stalement of Profit and Loss with Contract price
Description : Year ended

’ 31 March 2019
Contract price 13,730.27
Less: Discount, rebates, credits etc. (29.53)
Revenue from operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss 13,700.74
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Revenue from Conltracts with Customers .

Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Ind AS 115"), cstablishes a framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised and
tequires disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenucs and cash flows arising from customer contracts. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised through a 5-step
appzoich: : ’ .

() Identify the contract(s) with customer;

(i) Identify separate performance obligations in the conteact;

(i) Determine the transaction price;

(i} Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and

(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.

The Company has adopted the standard on 1 Apnil 2018 on a modified retrospective basis with 4 cumulative catch-up adjustment booked to retained eamings as at 1 April 2018 as if the
standard had always been in effect. The standard is applied only to contracts that are not completed as at 1 Apil 2018. Comparative information has not been restated and continues to be
teported under the accounting standards in cffect for those periods. The adoption of the new standard did nat result in any material adjustments to the Company’s net income.

Disaggregation of revenue
The Company has pecformed a disaggregated analysis of revenues considering the nature, amount, ming and uncertainty of revenues. This includes disclosure of revenues by geography and
timing of recognition.

Revenue from operations . . ) Sale of products | Other operating Total
revenue*

Revenue by geography :

Domestic : ) 11,679.82 519.1 12,199.53

Export : ‘ 1,501.24 - 1,501.21

Total . 13,181.03 519.71 13,700.74

Revenue by time ’

Revenue recognised at point in Hime 13,760.74

Revenue recognised over time -

Total 13,700.74

* Scrap sales and export incentive have been included in domestic revenue

Revenue recognised in refation to contract liabililies
Ind AS 115 also requires disclosure of ‘tevenue recognised in the seporting pedod that was included in the conteact liability balance at the beginning of the period” and ‘cevenuc recognised
in the reporting period from pecformance obligntions satisfied {or partially satisfied) in previous periods. Same has been disclosed as below:

Description Year ended
: 31 March 2019
Revenue recopnised in the reporting period that was included in the conteact liability bakance at the beginning of the period 527.89
Revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous pedods i -
Total 527.89
Assets and liabilities related to conlracis with customers
As at 31 March 2019 . Asat 31 March 2018
Description ' MNon-current Current Non-current - Current
Conteact liabilities related to sale of goods
Adwvance from customers . - 26,23 - 528.43
Reconciliation of revenue recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with Contract price
Description . ) Year ended
‘ ] _ 31 March 2019
Coniract price : - 13,730.27
Less: Discount, rebates, credits etc, © (29.53)

Revenue from operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss . 13,700,74
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Corporate social responsibility expenses
In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended from

. time to time, an amount of 2% of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years needs to be spent

on CSR projects/activities. At the board meeting held on 6 August 2018, the Board approved the CSR budget amounting of 2.63 lakh (31 March 2018: ¥
12.36 lakh) on recommendation of CSR Committee to be spent in the financial year 2018-19, However, no amount has been spent on CSR
projects/activities in the financial year 2018-19 against the approved budget of ¥ 2.63 lakh. '

Segment information .

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing of components of consumer durable products. Basis the nature of Company's business and operations, the
Company has one operating scgment ie. "manufacture of components of consumer durable products” for which information is reviewed by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to allocate resources and assess performance. Hence, the Company has only one reportable segment as per the
requirements of Ind AS 108 — ‘Operating Segments'. Majority of the revenue is derived from one geography and three external customers amounting to ¥
8,172.25 lakh (31 Macch 2018: ¥ 4,978.54 lakh from two external customers).

These are notes to accounts as referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP ‘ For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants PICL (India) Private Limited

(Firm Registratioq No. 001076N/N500013)
// D

© Mifaging Director
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